

# The Sierra Leone Gazette

## Published by Authority

Vol. CXLV THURSDAY, 10TH JULY, 2014 No. 37

PAGE

CONTENTS

163 Public Service Notices ... 353-354

## MINISTRY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

159 Recognition of John Obey as a Village with Black Johnson as a sub-village under it in the Western Area Rural District of 354 Sierra Leone

## MINISTRY OF LABOUR AND SOCIAL SECURITY

160 Joint National Negotiating Board (JNNB Notice of a New National Minimum Wage 354

## MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

165-

167 Supplementary List of Containers, Vehicles and Loosed Cargo at the Queen Elizabeth II Quay... 355-358

## ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL'S DEPARTMENT

168 Statement of receipts into and the payments out of the Consolidated Fund 31st January, 2014 359-360

164 SUPPLEMENT 354 Act

The Criminal Procedure Act, 2014.

Freetown 10th July, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No. 163

G.N.

## **Appointment**

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Kayineh, Sahr Joseph, Senior Planning and Budgeting Officer, 1.4.14.

Civil Service Training College Foday, Sahr, Assistant Lecturer, 30.9.13. Kanu, Philip J., Senior Lecturer, 30.9.13.

CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW COMMITTEE Kargbo, Musa, Driver, 1.4.14. Kamara, Unisa, Driver, 1.4.14.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Yovuwa, Margaret N., Executive Officer, 2.1.13. Lamin, Brima, Driver, 1.4.14. Bangura, Moses B., Senior Internal Auditor, 1.4.14.

MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS AND INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION Kamara, Abu Bakarr, Messenger, 1.4.14. Bangura, Josephine, Translator/Interpreter (Chinese), 1.11.12.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Vandy, Alren Onikeh Nandawa, House Officer, 10.9.14. Caulker, Amanda F., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Jalloh, Mohamed, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kabba, Alpha, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kallon, Joyce M., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kalokoh, Ibrahim, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Koroma, Bockarie, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14.
Serry, Samuel H., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14.
Turney, Sain, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Serry, Samuel H., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Turay, Saio, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Williams, Jude N., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Williams, Jude N., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kamara, Osman Y., Porter, 2.4.12. Bayoh, Umu, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Campbell, Winstona E., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Fofanah, Ibrahim S., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Kamara, Hassan D., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Kamara, Timothy F., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Kargbo, Pamela F., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Koroma, Baba, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Kpundeh, Mathew M., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Kpundeh, Mathew M., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Mackie, Mahmoud, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Manley, Jennifer M., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Mansaray, Mariama, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Meindy, Mary, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Sellu, John S., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14 Sheriff, Muctarr, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Williams, Comfort, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14.

Human Resource Management Office Koroma, Sarah, Stenographer Grade I, 1.4.14.

MINISTRY OF LANDS, COUNTRY PLANNING AND THE ENVIRONMENT Bah, Mariama S., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14.
Bangura, Isatu, Third Grade Clerk, 1.5.14.
Conteh, Ann-Marie, Third Grade Clerk, 1.5.14.
Dankay, Robert, Third Grade Clerk, 1.5.14.
Gamanga, Mballu J., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14.
O'rielly, Claudette, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14.
Sesay, Hannah M., Third Grade Clerk, 1.5.14.
Sesay, Rugiatu, Third Grade Clerk, 1.5.14.

MINISTRY OF LABOUR EMPLOYMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY James, Amos Sahr, Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Kamara, Isatu Y., Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Kamara, Mohamed A., Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Konteh, Wesen, Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Lavaly, Kanye Y., Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Showers, Dandeson A., Inspector of Factories, 1.4.14. Ademokula, Jeremiah B., Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Bockarie, George, Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Bundor, Tamba H. L., Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Deen, Ibrahim J., Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Dumbuya, Idrissa, Labour Officer, 1.4.14. During, Joseph, Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Jalloh, Abdulai P., Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Kargbo, Osman, Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Koroma, Richard, Labour Officer, 1.4.14. Sillah, Abu Bakarr, Labour Officer, 1.4.14.

Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development Kamara, Abdul Rahman, Messenger, 1.4.14. Mustapha, Massaquoi, Senior Driver, 1.4.14.

Ministry of Social Welfare, Gender and Children's Affairs Idriss, Fatmata Y., Social Service Officer, 1.4.14.

## ${\bf Promotion}$

CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING COLLEGE
Barrie, Aminata Rabiatu, Second Grade Clerk, 1.6.14.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Moseray, Julius O. E., Assistant Stores Controller, 1.4.14.

Conteh, Osman B. S., Stores Controller, 1.4.14.

Human Resource Management Office Amara, Salamatu, Second Grade Clerk, 1.5.10. Saffea, Sia Catherine, Senior I. C. T. Officer, 10.6.14.

Ministry of Internal Affairs Horner, Ernest, Station Officer, 1.12.13.

## Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Ministry of Agriculture Forestry and Food Security Gogba, Augustine P., Assistant Forester, retired on pension, 30.3.12

Cyril, Konneh, Senior Assistant Conservator of Forest, retired on pension, 4.10.12

Emmanuel, Missalie A., Agricultural Inspector Grade II, retired on pension, 4.12.13

#### MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Marah, Hawa E., Nursing Assiatant Aide, retired on pension, 15.10.13.

Ministry of Fisheries and Marine Resources Ngegba, Michael, Carpenter, retired on pension, 21.6.13. Dolice, Douglas, Works Service Employee, retired on pension, 21.6.13.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Roques, Emile G., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 25.10.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION
Turay, Mabinty, Cook, retired on pension, 4.10.13.
Foday, Koroma M., Medical Entomological Assistant, retired on pension, 27.8.13

Simbo, Josephine N., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 23.7.14

Kalokoh, Nancy R., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 17.9.13

Alie, Koroma, Porter, retired on pension, 25.10.13. Evelyn, Renner-Lisk, Sewing Maid, retired on pension, 24.10.13

#### HIGH COURT

Ambrose, Jongopie, Assitant Registrar Grade II, retired on pension, 3.9.13.

Kargbo, Yeabu, Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 18.10.13.

Ministry of Works, Housing and Infrastructure Ambrose, Jongopie, Assistant Registrar Grade II, retired on pension, 3.9.13.

Kargbo, Yeabu, Second Grade, retired on pension, 3.9.13.

#### Govt. Notice No. 164

The following Bill is published for general information with the memorandum of objects and reasons as supplement to this number of the Sierra Leone *Gazette*:—

A Bill entitled—"The Criminal Procedure Act, 2014"— Being an Act to consolidate and amend the law relating to criminal procedure.

## MINISTRY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Govt. Notice No. 159

## RECOGNITION OF JOHN-OBEY AS A VILLAGE

The Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development has recognized John Obey as a village with Black Johnson as a sub-village under it in the Western Area Rural District of Sierra Leone.

A. J. P. LEBBIE, f/Permanent Secretary.

#### MINISTRY OF LABOUR AND SOCIAL SECURITY

Govt. Notice No. 160

## JOINT NATIONAL NEGOTIATING BOARD (JNNB) NOTICE OF A NEW NATIONAL MINIMUM WAGE

The joint National Negotiating Board herein after called the (Joint National Board) mandated under the Regulation of Wages and Industrial Relations Act No. 18 of 10th December, 1971 to fix minimum rates of pay, paid public holidays and maximum hours of work for employees below supervisory level has concluded discussions and hereby announces a new National Minimum Wage of Le, 500,000.00 to replace the current Minimum Wage of Le 21,000,000 a month.

In consonance with section 6 of the regulation of wages and Industrial Relations Act, No. 18 of 10th December, 1971 the sum of Le 500,000.00 is now fixed as the new National Minimum Wage for Employees below supervisory level. The new Minimum Wage shall come into effect on the 1st September, 2014.

A. F. MUSA, Commissioner of Labour.

## MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

## Govt. Notice No. 165

## NATIONAL REVENUE AUTHORITY (Customs and Excise Department)

## SUPPLEMENTARY LIST OF UNCLAIMED AND ABANDONED CONTAINERS, VEHICLES AND BAGGAGE HALL CARGOES AT THE QUEEN ELIZABETH II QUAY

NO.	VESSEL	D. O. A	CONT. NO.	SIZE	DESCRIPTION	CONSIGNEE'S	ADDRESS
1 .	Not Stated	3/16/2011	Msku-362486-0	20'	Not Seen	Not Seen	Not Seen
2.	Not Stated	9/21/2012	Medu- 833992-4	40'	Not Seen	Not Seen	Not Seen
3.	M/V Spero	1/21/2014	Catu- 292487-9	20'	Veh And Personal Effect	Moses Conteh	12 Passonage Street
4.	M/V Irenes Logos	9/21/2013	CCLU 305593-0	20'	7 Pallets,3 Crates, 3 Ctns And 41 Loose Of Various Mining Spare Equipment	African Minerals	154 Wilkinson Road
5,	M/V MSC Anna	10/21/2013	MEDU- 836317-6	40'	Vehs And Personal Effect	Augustine Thompson	26 Pratt Lane F/T
6.	Sawasdee Hong Kung	10/8/2013	ECMU- 209497-9	20'	450 Card Board Sheets Packing Material	Delmas Sierra Leone Limited	19 Charlotte Street
7.	Safmarine Bia	11/1/2013	MRKU-003513-0	40'	445 Bags Flours	Mohamed Fouad Sheriff	3 Mina Driver F/T Sil
8.	Sawasdee Jakata	11/3/2013	GESU- 117216-4	20'	80 Drums Ethyl Neutral Alcohol	GJB Trading Co. Ltd	803 Grosvenor House
9.	M/V Irenes Logos	12/6/2013	MRKU- 794790-0	20'	408 Cases Vodka	Mohamed Fouad Sheriff	3 Mina Driver F/T S/L
10.	M/V Ms canna	10/21/2013	TGHU- 813539-7	40'	Vehicles	Mr Abu Bakarr Jalloh	224 Old Road Allen Town F/T
11.	M/V Irenes Logos	11/17/2014	MRKU- 367099-3	40'	Hdpe Pipe & Fitting	Storm Procurement Ltd	Not Stated
12.	Safmarine Bia	11/23/2013	MSKU- 959949-3	40'	Hdpe Pipe & Fitting	 StormProcurement	Not Stated ,
13.	Safmarine Taraba	12/1/2013	MMBU-107153-3	40'	1700 Cartons Frozer Fish	n Seven Oceans For Imp.&Export	Freetown
14.	Safmarine Taraba	12/1/2013	MNBU- 314734- 4	40'	1835 Cartons Frozer Fish	l Seven Oceans For Imp.& Export	Freetown
15.	M/V Claes Msk	1/18/2014	MSKU- 123431- 2	40'	4 Unit Vehicles	Used Cars SL LTD.	17 Campbell Street
16.	M/V Irenes Logos	11/17/2013	MSKU- 320454-9	20'	246 Cartons English Bible	Bible Society	2 Signal Hill Rd
17.	M/V Irenes Logos	11/17/2013	MSKU- 931101-4	40'	Hdpe Pipe & Fitting	Storm Procurement	Not Stated
18.	Sawasdee Hong Kong	10/8/2013	TCLU- 719963-3	20'	Card Board Sheet/ Drier Bags For Export Of Cocoa Beans	Delmas Sierra Leone Ltd	19 Charlotte Street

NO.	VESSEL	D. O. A	CONT. NO.	SIZE	DESCRIPTION	CONSIGNEE'S	ADDRESS
19.	Sawasdee Hong Kong	10/8/2013	TEMU- 316858-6	20'	Card Board Sheet/ Drier Bags For Export Of Cocoa Beans	Delmas Sierra Leone Ltd	19 Charlotte Street
20.	Sawasdee Hong Kong	10/8/2013	TGHU- 125892-8	20'	Card Board Sheet/ Drier Bags For Expo Of Cocoa Beans	ort Delmas Sierra Leone Ltd	19 Charlotte Street
21.	Not Stated	5/31/2013	TRIU- 558992-0	40'	Not Seen	Not Seen	Not Seen
22.	Sawasdee Hong Kong	10/26/2013	TTNU- 501051-9	40'	Impregnate Telegraph Rods	Nevada Energy Resources	62c Sir Samuel Lewis Rd.
23.	Safmarine Bia	1/7 /2014	ALLU- 299611-9	20'	Not Manifested	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
24.	Safmarine Taraba	1/9/2014	PONU-717862-2	40'	3 Vehicles	Used Cars SL LTD.	17 Campbell Street
25.	Safmarine Taraba	1/9/2014	MSKU- 398969-0	20'	Veh And Household Goods	Magaret Barrie / Tamarenelh	34 Ecowas Street F/T
26.	M/V Spero	1/21/2014	CATU 292487-9	20'	Veh And Personal Effect	Moses Conteh	12 Passonage Street
27.	MSC Grace	1/23/2014	CARU-994839-2	40'	60 Pkgs Humanitarianrelief Cargo	Nippon Mining Ltd/ T.K Fairman	1A Wilkinson Rd
28.	Safmarine Bia	1/25/2014	MSKU-724822-6	20'	1550 Cartons Beverages	Issa Kargbo	Murraytown  125 Willington F/T
29.	Safmarine Taraba	1/30/2014	MNBU- 321899-9	40'	950 Bags Onion	Nygeh Enterprise	90 Kissy Road F/T
30.	M/Vspero	2/20/2014	CAIU-886801-7	40'	Baby Diapers And Adult Diapers	Lpc Intl.And General Trading	4 Sacville Street F/T
31.	M/Vspero	2/20/2014	ECMU-943364-7	40'	Baby Diapers And Adult Diapers	Lpc Intl.And General Trading	4 Sacville Street F/T
32.	M/V Spero	2/20/2d14	TCNU-560897 -7	40'	Baby Diapers And Adult Diapers	Lpc Intl.And General Trading	4 Sacville Street F/T
33.	M/Vspero	2/20/2014	Cneu-152304-5	20'	Old N Gold Malt Whisky 1147 Cases		94 Bai Bureh Road Texaco New Rd.
34.	M/V Spero	2/20/2014	ECMU-139304-4	20'	PSN Lighters	Aboujaude Brothers	7 Wilberforce Street F/
35.	M/V Spero	2/20/2014	ECMU-943364-7	40'	Baby Diapers And Adult Diapers	Lpc Intl.And General Trading	4 Sacville Street F/T
36.	Safmarine Sanaga	2/6/2014	Mrku-280230-7	40'	6388 Packages Prefab Houses Accessories	Kamboi Hill Mining Corporation Ltd	39 Siaka Steven Street
37.	Safmarine Sanaga	2/6/2014	MSKU- 782793-2	20'	2855 Packages Exploration Equipme Parts	nt Kamboi Hill Mining Corporation Ltd	39 Siaka Steven Street F/T

NO.	VESSEL	D. O. A	CONT. NO.	SIZE	DESCRIPTION	CONSIGNEE'S	ADDRESS
38. 39.	Safmarine Sanaga Safmarine	2/6/2014	MWCU- 619682-7	40'	950 Bags Onions	Nygeh Enterprise	90 Kissy Road F/T
40.	Sanaga Safmarine	2/6/2014	PONU-800651-0	40'	3 Unit Vehicles	Lawrence Wray	17 Campbell Street
40,	Bia	2/14/2014	MRKU-713444-8	20'	158 Packages Aluminium	Jinhuijie LTD.	58 Krootown Road
41.	Safmarine Taraba	2/21/2014	MRKU-394564-2	40'	1 Lot Used Vehicles	To Order	Freetown
42.	Safmarine Taraba	2/21/2014	MSKU- 197976-9	40'	4 Unit Vehicles	Joseph Cole Wilberforce	4 Water Street
43.	Safmarine Sanaga	2/27/2014	MRKU- 466056-2	40'	Veh And Household Items	Joyce Banya	Freetown
44.	Grd. Benin	3/4/2014	GCNU-469430-3	40'	5 Unit Vehicles	Ahmed Jalloh	4 Dickson Street F/T
45.	Taasinge Maersk	06/03/2014	MRKU-272227-0	40'	1 Package Personal Effect	Abdul Turay	21 City Road Wellington
46.	Taasinge Maersk	06/03/2014	MRKU-785982-0	20'	1891 Ctns Ceramics	s Sekou Souane	Freetown

## IDRISSA KANU,

For Financial Secretary
Ministry of Finance and Economic Development.

## Govt. Notice No. 166

## VEHICLES OVER SIXTY DAYS IN PORT AS AT 5/5/2014

<b>No</b> 1.	<b>Vessel</b> Safmarine	D.O.A.	Type	Chasis	Consignee	Address
1.	Bandama	2/9/2012	Mitsubishi Mirage	43830	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
2.	Msc Shirley	5/4/2012	Daihatsu Truck	600162	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
3.	Msc Grace	6/7/2012	Ford Econoline	B47699	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
4.	Msc Grace	7/20/2012	Honda Accord	62148	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
5.	Claes Maersk	7/16/2012	Sssanyong Korando	14176	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
6.	Csec Taijin	3/8/2013	Mazda 323	173020	Sandra Saffa	No Address
7.	Safmarine Sanaga	4/9/2013	Suzuki Vitara	137387	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
8.	Grande Amburgo	4/17/2013	L. Rover Discovery	226753	Abu Carew	118a Kissy Road F/T.
9.	Dorikos	5/24/2013	Ldv Convoy Van	36642	Christian Madaa	
		CONTRACTOR DE LOCATION			Ngombu	Fourah Bay College, F/T.
10.	Grande Argentina	6/7/2013	Nissan Pathfinder	541146	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
11.	Safmarine Taraba	7/12/2013	Fiat Doblo Van	14541	Mrs. Zainab Koroma	11 Dundas Street
12.	Gitte	8/24/2013	Mitsubishi Van	541146	Alieu Dumbuya	18d Bismark Johnson St.
		,,				F/T.
13.	Safmarine Bia	10/30/2013	Holdan Combo Van	74610	Mary T. Johnson	8 George Brook, Freetown
14.	Grande Amburgo	11/9/2013	Renault Leguna	339532	Jenny Bill	15 Edward Lane
15.	Irenes Logos	11/16/2013	Mitsubishi Sedan	1735	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
16.	Cove Island	11/21/2013	Bmw 325 Car	D14037	Amadu Massaquoi	B-42 Kinghaman Road,
					F/T.	17.
Cove Is:		11/21/2013	Ibiza Hatchback	736094	Abubakarr Mansaray	8byne Street. F/T.
18.	Grande San					
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Motor Bike	531	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
19.	Grande San					
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Motor Bike	134270	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
20.	Grande San					
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Motor Bike	1354	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
21.	Grande San					
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Motor Bike	10165	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
22.	Grande San					
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Mitsubishi Eclipse	137533	Rev. Mathias	
					Bannister/Edward	
					Y. Bio	19 Beckley Street, F/T.
23.	Grande San			WALL STORY SHOOMERS		
	Paolo	12/2/2013	L. Rover Discovery	251656	Ibrahim Jalloh	7 Duke St. Off Circular
						Rd.
24.	Grande San	10/0/0013	Min 1:1: C	10051	27 . 26	20 1
	Paolo	12/2/2013	Mitsubishi Car	10861	Not Manifested	Not Manifested

No	Vessel	D.O.A.	Туре	Chasis	Consignee	Address
25.	Grande San Paolo	12/2/2013	Nissan Almera	516519	Osman Mansaray	20d City Rd. Brima Lane, Old Rd.
26.	Sawasdee Hong Kong	12/13/2013	Daihatsu Van	2005669	Abubakarr Sidiki Koroma	Sierra Leone
27.	Grande Morocco	12/13/2013	Chevrolet Pickup	105490	Kadijatu Bangura	5 Croweer St. F/T.
28.	Safmarine Bia	12/17/2013	Toyota Rav 4	220153	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
29.	Grande Brasile	12/21/2013	Iveco Truck	984191	Sallieu Conteh	9 Africanus Rd. Kissy Dock Yard
30.	Safmarine Taraba	12/27/2013	Talbot Horizon	111325	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
31.	Grande Sierra Leone	1/16/2014	Volvo S40	704431	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
32.	Claes Maersk	1/18/2014	Kia Sportage	128599	Ibrahim S. Conteh	30 Thunder Hill Road, F/T.
33.	Grande Togo	1/22/2014	Iveco Truck	92238	Termarc (SL)	98 Regents St.
34.	Grande Togo	1/22/2014	Cruze Car	639807	Not Manifested	Not Manifested
35.	Grande Togo	1/22/2014	New Holland	B04599	Addax Boienergy (SL)	93 Bai Bureh Rd. Kissy, F/T.
36.	Msc Grace	1/23/2014	M. Benz	A074015	Altech Trading Ent.	45 Big Waterloo St. F/T.
37.	Safmarine Bia	1/24/2014	Isuzu Trooper	904580	East-West Rental & Leasing C/O M.	1 Femi Turner Drive, Kamara Goderich. F/T.
38.	Safmarine Bia	1/24/2014	Isuzu Trooper	921277	East-West Rental & Leasing C/O M.	1 Femi Turner Drive, Kamara Goderich. F/T.
39.	Sawasdee Jakarta	2/4/2014	Alfa Romeo	135931	Bai Fonti Fofana C/O Mr. Morie Samba	70 Baibureh Rd.
40.	Safmarine Sanaga	2/6/2014	Nissan Xterra	570849	Abdul K. Kamara/ Sigismond C. Benjamin	9j Black Hall Rd. F/T
41.	Safmarine Sanaga	2/6/2014	Nissan Pickup Van	381585	Abdul K. Kamara/ Sigismond C. Benjamin	9j Black Hall Road F/T Not Stated
42.	Dream Diamond	2/16/2014	Mazda 626	652721	Sento Kamara	
43.	Costa D'avorio	2/22/2014	Nissan Sunny	108188	Alhaji Bah	64 Sackville Street, F/T.
44.	Costa D'avorio	2/22/2014	Albaret Compactor	900809	Begec-Tp	31 Walpole Street, Freetown
45.	Costa D'avorio	2/22/2014	Unimog Truck	157551	Begee-Tp	31 Walpole Street, Freetown

## IDRISSA KANU,

For Financial Secretary
Ministry of Finance and Economic Development.

Govt. Notice No. 167

## Saggagt Hall Cargoes Over Sixty Days In Port As At 05/05/2014

No.	Vessel's	D. O. A.	Consignee Name's	Description
1.	Sawasdee Jakata	05/09/2013	Master of Lamnaco	10 Packages
2.	Sawasdee Jakata	05/09/2013	Tonkolili Iron Ore	1 Pallet
3.	Grand Cameroon	18/05/2012	Yumkela	8 Cartons
4.	Sawasdee Jakata	26/11/2013	Johnny Walker	15 Cartons
5.	Safmarine Hong Kong	27/08/2013	Ministry of Health	2 Pallets
6.	Not Stated	Not Stated	Sierra Leone Telecommunication	5 Cartons
7.	Not Stated	Not Stated	Sierra Leone Telecommunication	1 Pallet
8.	Not Stated	Not Stated	Sierra Leone Telecommunication	1 Pallet
9.	Grande America	14/09/2012	London Mining	1 Case
10.	Safmarine Taraba	12/02/2013	Hawk Plant Hire	1 Pallet
11.	San Francisco	28/12/2012	Sierra Minerals	2 Pallet

## ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL'S DEPARTMENT

## Govt. Notice No. 168

## PUBLIC NOTICE

In accordance with Section 54(2b) of the Government Budgeting and Accountability Act, 2005 a Statement of Receipts into and the Payments out of the Consolidated Fund for the month of May, 2014 as compared with Budgetary Estimates for the year is hereby published.

## STATEMENT OF FISCAL OPERATIONS (CONSOLIDATED FUND)

for the month ended 31st May, 2014

E	Budget for the y	rear Actu	als	
J	an 14-Dec 14	Jan 14-April 14	May-14	Total
	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm
Domestic Revenue Collection				
Income Tax	909,945	295,634	83,432	379,067
Customs and Excise	650,378	164,331	61,012	225,343
Goods and Services Tax	523,412	145,218	42,786	188,004
Mineral Resources	261,541	97,342	21,597	118,940
Fisheries	15,632	5,401	169	5,570
Other Departments	107,521	21,776	15,784	37,560
Road User Charges and Vehicle Licen	ices 112,861	=		=
Total Domestic Revenue	2,581,290	729,703	224,781	954,483
Grants Receipts (Direct Grant				
Budgetary Support) HIPC Debt Relief Assistance		3,923	_	3,923
Global Fund Salary Support	32,094	-		5,925
Other Grants Received- External Donor		42,104	108,453	150,557
Total Grant Receipts	217,168	46,027	108,453	154,480
Total Receipts	2,798,458	775,729	333,234	1,108,963
OPERATING EXPENSES				
Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits	1,360,916	455,462	132,560	588,022
Non-Salary, Non-Interest	-,,-	,	,	,
Recurrent Expenditure	914,356	290,635	153,984	444,619
o/w National Revenue Authority	65,167	15,000	17,626	32,626
Grants to Educational Institutions	125,318	67,237	-	67,237
Transfer to Road Fund	112,861	,	_	
Transfers to Local Councils	71,437	31,621	7,563	39,185
Domestic Development Expenditures	536,052	238,589	71,473	310,061
Total Operating Expenses	2,811,324	984,685	358,017	1,342,702
Net Cashflows from Operating				
Activities	(12,866)	(208,956)	(24,783)	(233,739)
Finance Costs	(339,742)	(81,578)	(9,904)	(91,482)
Domestic Interest	(300,757)	(74,009)	(7,920)	(81,929)
Foreign Interest	(38,985)	(7,569)	(1,984)	(9,553)
Arrears Payments	(6,960)	(8,531)	(17,410)	(25,941)
Domestic Suppliers	(3,409)		<u>=</u>	_
Wages Arrears	(3,551)	(2,802)	-	(2,802)
Project Arrears	-	(5,729)	(17,410)	(23, 139)
Contingency Expenditure	(2,838)	-	_	_
Cheques payable	-	56,784	21,908	78,691
Others	-	(373)	12,113	(12,486)
Total Non-Operating Activities	(297,966)	(33,689)	(17,519)	(51,217)

STATEMENT OF FISCAL OPERATIONS (CONSOLIDATED FUND) for the month ended 31st May 2014

	Budget for the year		Actuals	
	Jan 14-Dec 14 Ja	n 14-April 14	May-14	Total
	Le' m	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm
Financing Items				
Net movement in treasury bills and				
treasury bearer bonds		100,390	20,566	120,956
Ways & Means	(310,857)	81,505	4,347	85,855
Privatisation Receipts	(43,773)	-	12,990	12,990
Loan Amortization	(104,475)	(34,122)	(4,343)	(38,465)
Total Financing	310,831	147,776	33,560	181,336
Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Balances				
during the period	(1)	(94,878)	(8,742)	(103,619)

BY ORDER

KEBBE A. KOUROMA Accountant General

## STATEMENT OF PAYMENTS BY PROGRAMME/ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS OF GOVERNMENT (Functional Classification of Expenditures by Heads and Items) for the month ended 31st May 2014

				2014	
				MAY	
	Jan-April	Personnel Expenditure	Other Charges	Domestics Development	Total
	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm	Le'm
PAYMENTS/EXPENDITURE					
Operating Account					
Education Services	199,204	37,700	1,626	B	238,531
Health Services	48,186	10,413	12,811	898	72,308
Social Protection	54,546	28,976	2,132	3,860	89,515
Defence	100,674	8,416	=	-	109,090
Public Order and Safety	104,834	12,717	4,808	10,235	132,594
Recreation, Culture and Safety	2,312	181	2,705	; <del>-</del>	5,198
Housing communities amenities	19,842	-	-	829	20,672
Environmental Protection	_	_	=	1=	-
Economic Affairs	254,245	6,456	15,667	53,754	330,122
General Public Services	209,374	27,701	131,644	1,897	370,615
Total Payments/Expenditure	993,217	132,217	171,394	71,473	1,368,643

BY ORDER

KEBBE A. KOUROMA Accountant General.

Freetown 24th July, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### Appointment

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Sesay, Benedict, Livestock Assistant, 1.5.14.

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY Bangura, Ibrahim H., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Bangura, Sarah, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Conteh, Ballay, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Felix-George, Zinzi F., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Kamara, Mamusu, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Kamara, Umu, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Kanneh, Antonette D., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Karbgo, John A. K., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Kargbo, Mariama, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Lamboi, Daisy M., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Martin, Melody L. A., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Momoh, Hindolo D., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Momoh, Magdalene J., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Sam-Sosokoneh Sia., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Sawaneh, Bernadette, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Scott, Josephine N. S., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Thomas, Rosaline, Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14. Turay, Memunatu., Third Grade Clerk, 1.6.14.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Bangura, Daniel S., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Bangura, Isatu S., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Barrie, Iyesatu B., House Officer, 1.4.14. Borboh, Paul T., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Dumbuya, Abu Bakarr, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Fadika, Fatima, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Gouldson, Florence S., State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Jalloh, Fatmata, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Jalloh, Mariama, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Jusu, Morrison O., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kabba, John A., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kalloh, Ahamed F., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kamara, Rugiatu, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Kamara, Rugiatu Z., House Officer, 1.3.14. Kanu, Kadiau, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Kanu, Sulaiman, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Kargbo, Edward, Project Manager, 1.4.14. Koroma, Etta, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Koroma, Isatu K., State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14. Koroma, Ibrahim F., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Lahai, Francis, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Mansaray, Noah B., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Moiwa, Sylvester L., Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14. Sandy, Beatrice, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.14. Sebba, Bondu, Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Serry, Hajara, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14.

Serry, Hajara, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14.
Sesay, Abu, Store Clerk Grade 11, 1.1.14.
Sesay, Allieu, Pharmacy Technician, 1.4.14.
Sheriff, Alpha, Procurement Officer, 1.4.14.
Sonduyu, Dainah, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14.
Turay, Hssanatu, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14.
Yansaneh, Finda, State Registered Nurse, 1.3.14.

## Promotion

JUDICIARY

Cole Nee Kamara, Betsy, 2nd Grade Clerk, 1.3.14. Grandby. Edna Selina, Administrative Assistant, 1.3.14. Pratt, Georgia, First Grade Clerk, 1.3.14. Wilson, Samuel, Principal Assistant Registrar, 1.3.14.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

 $\label{thm:countant} Accountant General's Department \\ Kamara, Alusine, Security, retired on pension, 28.6.12.$ 

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Sandy, Francis, Field Assistant, retired on pension, 9.9.13.

MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Gibilla, Evelyn, Audit Assistant, retired on pension, 7.11.12.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Carew, Mabel, Midwifery Sister, retired on pension, 23 12 13

Conteh, Susan, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 6.9.13.

Conteh, Humaru S., E.D.C. Unit Assistant, retired on pension, 13.9.13.

Edith. Josephine C., Nursing Aide, retired on pension, 17.9.13.

Jabaty, Angella, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 25.2.14.

Kamara, Abdul Tejan, Assistant, Public Health Inspector, retired on pension, 20.2.14

Kamara, Festus Mohamed, Pharmacy Technician, retired on pension, 3.7.14.

Kanu, Martha, Mental Attendant, retired on pension, 24.1.14.

Kargbo, Aminata, Midwifery Sister, retired on pension,

4.10.13 Koroma, Samuel M., Store Clerk Grade 2, retired on

pension, 25.10.13.

Macleod Josephine, Nursing Aide, retired on pension, 10.1.14.

Macrae, Lucetia E., Midwife, retired on pension, 30.1.14. Mansaray, Isata, Nursing Aide, retired on pension, 28.2.11.

Matturi, Helen S., Midwifery Sister, retired on pension, 30.1.14.

Sesay, Albert, Motor Mechanic, retired on pension, 3.6.14.

Sesay, Alimamy, Porter, retired on pension, 21.10.13. Sesay, Alpha, Cleaner, retired on pension, 30.1.14

Ministry of Information and Communications Kargbo, Santigie, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 30.7.13.

Ministry of Local Government and Community Development Kamara, Sheriff D., Deputy Secretary, retired on pension, 12.9.13.

Ministry of Mines and Mineral Resources Kamara, Sorie, Messenger, retired on pension, 1.8.12.

Ministry of Trade and Industry Fofana, Mohamed S., Cooperative Inspector Grade 2, retired on pension, 11.10.13. Freetown 26th June, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### Absorption

METEOROLOGICAL DEPARTMENT Wilson, Muriel M., Temporary Clerical Assistant, 11.1.12.

#### Appointment

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Benson, Thomas, Mechanical Electrician, 11.1.13. Jalloh, Osman, Motor Mechanic, 1.11.13.

CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING COLLEGE Wurie, Haja R., Senior Lecturer, 30.9.13. Kargbo, Sanpha P., Training Coordinator, 30.9.13.

CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW COMMITTEE Kamara, Hassan, Driver, 1.4.14. Kamara, Sorie, Driver, 1.4.14.

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY Turay, Brima M., Deputy Director Broadcasting, 1.9.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Conteh, Mohamed, Cleaner, 2.4.13. James, Alpha, Cleaner, 2.4.12. Ali, Desta B., House Officer, 1.9.13. Alieu, Ellen L., House Officer, 1.9.13. Conteh, Muhammad A., House Officer, 1.9.13. Fillie, Paul C., House Officer, 1.9.13. Kamara, Marina S. C., House Officer, 1.9.13. Koroma, Fanny F., House Officer, 1.9.13. Kamara, Fillah, House Officer, 1.9.13. Ngegbai, Amara S., House Officer, 1.9.13. Tengbeh, Sia M. M., House Officer, 1.9.13. Bangura, Abdul M., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Gbaoh, Emma T., Inspecting Pharmacist, 1.4.14. Fullah, Issa B., Porter, 2.4.14. Sam, Lamin K., Porter, 2.4.14.

Benjamin, Beatrice M., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 6.4.12.

Kamara, Adama O., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 2.4.12.

Koroma, Gibrilla F., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 2.4.12.

Kamara, Saidu P., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 2.4.12.

Kamara, Mohamed K., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 2,4,12,

Massaquoi, Agnes, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 21.6.12.

MINISTRY OF MINES AND MINERAL RESOURCES

Gbappi, Ernest B. S., Geologist, 12.11.13.

Jusu, Emmanuel T., Geologist, 1.11.13. Kanu, Desmond R., Geologist, 1.11.13.

Akinbobola, Thomas K. O., Government Mining Engineer, 1.10.13.

Fullah, Alhassan S. S., Government Mining Engineer, 1.10.13.

Kallon, Isaac I. D., Government Mining Engineer, 1.10.13.

Kallon, Maisarrah, Government Mining Engineer,

Kamara, Alieu Government Mining Engineer, 1.11.13. Nottidge, Arnold W., Government Mining Engineer, 1.11.13.

Office of the President Samura, Fatmata B., Executive Officer, 1.12.13.

MINISTRY OF WATER RESOURCES Koroma, Musa A., Messenger, 1.12.13. Sesay, Abu Bakarr, Messenger, 1.12.13.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Harding, Alfred, Security Guard, retired on pension, 24.9.13.

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Kamara, Momodu, Boat Builder, retired on pension, 31.5.12.

Freetown 20th March 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

## Appointment

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Co-operation Bangura, Josephine I., Translator/Interpreter, 1.11.12.

MINISTRY OF FISHERIES AND MARINE RESOURCES Kamara, Tigidankay, Third Grade Clerk, 1.2.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Kalilie, Christiana M., Pharmacy Technician, 1.2.13. Kamara, Sheku, Porter, 1.2.13.

Amara, Catherine, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.2.13.

Kabba, Maseray, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.3.13.

Samura, Bakie, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.3.13.

Swarray, Bockarie, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.3.13.

Kamara, Mohamed, X-Ray Attendant, 1.7.09.

Local Government Service Commission Conteh, Lansana, Driver, 1.2.13.

Ministry of Information and Communication Bangura, Santigie A., Assistant I. C. T. Officer, 1.2.13.

Ministry of Mines and Mineral Resouces Sheriff, Sheku L. I., Government Mining Engineer, 1.11.13.

Office of the President French, Lorna A., Acting Assistant to the President, Grade 11, 15.6.11.

## Promotion

MINISTRY OF INTERNAL AFFAIRS Bah, Saffieu, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Bangalie, Patrick E., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Cole, Ekundayo, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Dumbuya, Edith K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Dumbuya, Ibrahim S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Gogra, Lansana, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Kamanda, Ibrahim B., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Kamara, Abdulai I., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Kanu, Memunatu S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Kargbo, Isatu M., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Koroma, Abdulai I., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Koroma, Aruna V., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Manley, James, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Mansaray, Ibrahim S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Sesay, Hassan, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14. Turay, Ibrahim Karim, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.2.14.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Koroma, James, Head Security, retired on pension, 10.4.14.

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology Bio, Priscillia T. F., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 20.8.13.

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Co-operation Summer, Hawa J., Permanent Secretary, retired on pension, 30.6.08.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Soloku, Fatmata J., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 17.9.13. Norman, Julius, Porter, retired on pension, 29.10.13. Kargbo, Musu, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 6.9.13.

Turay, Edmond M., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 15.11.13.

Tarawally, Kenei E., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, retired on pension, 29.10.13. Freetown 6th March, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### **Appointment**

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Koroma, Mohamed, Mechanic, 1.3.14.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Koroma, John S., Third Grade Clerk, 1.3.14.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Kamara, Mohamed, Mortuary Attendant, 1.4.10. Fabendeh, Hawa, Stae Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Songa, Aminata, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Sandy, Beatrice, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Squire, Alice, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Sonnie, Yatta, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Ministry of Lands, Country Planning and Environment Vassama, Mohamed, Third Grade Clerk, 1.3.14.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Alghali, Mohamed M., Agriculture Technician, retired on pension, 24.7.13.

Cole, Fatmata I., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 21.10.13.

Conteh, Ibrahim S., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 4.10.13.

Dumbuya, Foday, Labourer, retired on pension, 22.2.10.

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Co-operation Sumner, Hawa J., Permanent Secretary, retired on pension, 30.8.08.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Jalloh, Amadu J., Director of Planning, retired on pension, 17.6.13.

Koroma, John S., Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 1.3.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION

Jalloh, Lansana, Driver, retired on pension, 29.10.13. Fewry, Peter A., Dispenser Grade 2, retired on pension, 23.12.13.

Jalloh, Sheriff A., Edemic Diseases Control Unit Assistant, retired on pension, 23.12.13.

Kalokoh, Saidu A., Environmental Health Superintendent, retired on pension, 4.10.13.

Sesay, Sorie, Messenger, retired on pension, 24.6.11. Kamara, Ramatu, Nursing Assistant Aide, retired on pension, 14.11.13.

Sesay, Bombai, Night Soil Man, retired on pension, 12.9.13.

Tarawally, Kenei E., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, retired on pension, 29.10.13.

Soloku, Fatmata, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 17.9.13.

Norman, Julius, Porter, retired on pension, 29.10.13. Kargbo, Musu, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 6.9.13.

Saquee, Kumba H., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 3.10.13.

Savage, Isatu A., Mental Hospital Attendant, retired on pension, 6.11.13.

Turay, Edmond M., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 15.11.13.

IMMIGRATION DEPARTMENT

Kamara, Sheka, Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 15.11.13.

Ministry of Tourism and Cultural Affairs Macauley, Charles E., Field Enumerator, retired on pension, 16.10.13.

Ministry of Transport and Aviation Kargbo, Sannie A., Meteorological Superintendent, retired on pension, 12.11.13.

MINISTRY OF WORKS, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE Ngegba, Michael, Foreman, retired on pension, 8.8.13. Kamara, Samuel, Leading Hand Motor Mechanic, retired on pension, 23.10.13. Freetown 27th February, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### Appointment

MINISTRY OF FINANCE

Heroe, Austin Edward, Executive Officer, 1.3.12.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION
Kallie, Christiana M. V., Pharmacy Technician, 1.2.13.
Kamara, Mohamed, X-Ray Attendant, 1.7.09.

MINISTRY OF LANDS, COUNTRY PLANNING AND THE ENVIRONMENT Alpha, Martha, Third Grade Clerk, 1.3.14.

Ministry of Mines and Mineral Resources Sheriff, Ishmail S. L., Government Mining Engineer, 1.11.13.

MINISTRY OF YOUTH AFFAIRS Koroma, Juana, Technical Manager, 1.2.14. Massaquoi, George M. T., Field Manager Youth Village Project, 1.2.14.

#### Promotion

NATIONAL FIRE FORCE

Kamara, Abdulai I., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Bangura, Abu Bakarr Sidique, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Koroma, Aruna V., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Bangura, Suliaman, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Noah, Brima, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Dumbuya, Edith K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Cole, Ekundayo M., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Bangalie, Emmanuel P., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Gabisi, Suliaman D., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Gogra, Albert K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Sesay, Hassan, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Turay, Ibrahim K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Dumbuya, Ibrahim S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Mansaray, Ibrahim S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Kargbo, Isatu M., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Manley, James, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Kamanda, Bongay I., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Kamara, Kelfala K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Kemba, Angella, Second Class Firewoman, 1.1.13. Koroma, Santigie, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Turay, Mariatu, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Mboma, Alfred A., Second Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Kanu, Memunatu S., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Bongay, Nasiru K., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Bah, Saffieu, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Foday, Sadikie, First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13. Soluku, Munda L., First Class Fire Fighter, 1.1.13.

## Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Koroma, James, Head Security, retired on pension, 1.4.13.

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY Bio, Priscilla Fudia T., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 20.8.13. Grey, Ransolina, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 1.4.13.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Dumbuya, Saidu T., District Environmental Health Superintendent, retired on pension, 10.4.13.

Ministry of Works, Housing and Infrastructure Turay, Saio, Inspector of Works, retired on pension, 9.4.13. Freetown. 6th Feburary, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### **Appointment**

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Kargbo, Henry,, Deputy Director Crop Division, 1.12.13.

Cabinet Secretariat
Bangura, Salifu A., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

MINISTRY OF ENERGY
Massaquoi, Foday E., Messenger, 1.1.13.
Conteh, Abdulai M., Messenger, 1.1.13.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Alghali, Amir Legal Adviser 13.2.14.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Dawoh, Francis, Counterpart Procurement Director, 4.10.13. Tarawalie, Peter, Evaluation Technician, 1.12.13. Bankole-Gibson, Ryan, House Officer, 17.12.13. Bockarie, Lucinda, House Officer, 17.12.13. Jalloh, Mohamed B., House Officer, 17.12.13. Kafoe, Samuel A., House Officer, 17.12.13. Kamara, Ibrahim K., House Officer, 17.12.13. Kamara, Ibrahim F. A. H., House Officer, 17.12.13. Kanneh, Sekou, House Officer, 17.12.13. Lavalie, Daniel, House Officer, 17.12.13. Mbeteh, John Stevens, House Officer, 17.12.13. Ngobeh, Edward, House Officer, 17.12.13. Waritay, Sorie, Monitoring and Evaluation Officer, 1.1.13. Marke, Dennis H., Registrar. 1.12.13. Sesay, Alhassan, Pharmacy Technician, 1.7.13. Swaray, Mohamed A., Store Clerk Grade, 1.1.13. Abu, Sahr, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 17.12.13. Barrie. Memunatu, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13. Korgay, Jina Lamin B., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.4.13.

Human Resource Management Office Letitia, Y., Ulric-Elba, Executive Officer, 1.1.13. Tarawali, Leonora Haja, Executive Officer, 1.1.13. Conteh, John, Human Resource Officer, 1.1.13.

MINISTRY OF INTERNAL AFFAIRS
Amara, Alfred, Prison Officer, 1.1.14.
Conteh, Mariatu, Prison Officer, 1.1.14.
Conteh, Moses B., Prison Officer, 1.1.14.
Kamara, Kingsley, Prison Officer, 1.1.14.
Marrah, Sunnah, Prison Officer, 1.1.14.
Sesay, Magdalene J., Prison Officer, 1.1.14.

Judiciary Department Kaimapo, Arthur Deen, Court Clerk, 1.1.13.

Ministry of Land's Country Planning and the Environment Sunna, Farma, Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

MINISTRY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT Samura, Iyaba, Cook, 1.12.13.
Barrie, Bella, Labourer, 1.12.13.
Koroma, Musa, Labourer, 1.12.13.
Marah, Yonto, Labourer, 1.12.13.
Samura, Saio, Labourer, 1.12.13.
Turay, Namisa, Third Grade Clerk, 1.12.13.

Office of the President

Sowa, Brima, Acting Assistant to the Secretary to the President Grade (11), 11.6.13.

Samura, Saidu, Acting Senior Assistant to the Secretary to the President Grade (12), 11.6.13.

Office of the Vice President Brima, Richard, Messenger, 1.11.13. Sam, Mohamed, Gardener, 1.11.13.

Ministry of Social Welfare, Gender and Children's Affiars Imah, Ini, Higher Executive Officer, 1.1.14.

MINISTRY OF WATER RESOURCE
Mansaray, Ferenkeh, Assistant Water Assistant, 1.8.13.
Laggah, Lansana, Driver, 1.12.13.
Spaine, Caroline, Water Mapping Assistant, 1.8.13.
Sesay, Alhaji, Water Mapping Assistant, 1.8.13.
Sorie, George, Water Mapping Assistant, 1.8.13.

Freetown. 22nd January, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

## Appointment

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Juana, Mattu, Driver, 1.9.13.

#### CABINET SECRETARIAT

Bangura, Salifu A., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13

CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING COLLEGE

Conteh, Matthew M., Assistant Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Conteh, Bayala S., Assistant Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Konteh, Abdulai, Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Fofanah, Ibrahim M., Assistant Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Jones, Dennis, Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Massaquoi, Edwin Kpana, Lecturer, 30.9.13.

Taylor, Mohamed, Registrar, 30.9.13.

#### MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Kainessie, Sahr, Photo Journalist, 1.11.13.

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development Dumbuya, Abu F., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

#### MINISTRY OF ENERGY

Suma, Foday Lansana, Head of Rural Energy, 1.10.13. Mansaray, Rodin F., Head of Renewable Energy, 1.11.13. Lawson, Samuel, Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13. Kamara, Shebora O., Programme Officer M and E.,

1.10.13. Koroma, Alimatu, Programme Officer, 1.10.13.

Gbateh, Moses, Programme Officer M and E., 1.10.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION

Koroma, Mariama, Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

Bah, Amadu, House Officer, 1.11.13.

Babalola, Olawale A., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Ceesay, Isatou K., House Officer, 1.11.13.

David, Ifeolu J., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Kanu, James K., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Sesay, Brima M., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Suma, Foday B., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Thorpe, Joseph F., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Thompson, Frederick T., House Officer, 1.11.13.

Ansumana, Mustapha, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Jalloh, Abdulai, Laboratory Technician, 1.8.13.

Jalloh, Kadijatu, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Kamara, Fatmata, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Kanu, Manda, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Konteh, Kanko G., Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Koroma, Christiana, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Sesay, Morie Y., Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13. Siaffa, Massah, Laboratory Technician, 1.8.13.

Tengbeh, Priscillia, Laboratory Technician, 1.7.13.

Bangura, Fatmata, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Conteh, Zainab, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Conteh, Mariam, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Fullah, Martha, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Kaindaneh, Sarah P., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.8.13.

Kamara, Isha, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Kargbo, Musu, State Enrolled Community Health Nurse,

Heroe, Janet F., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Saw, Bassim B., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

Waleh, Whetonia C., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, 1.7.13.

MINISTRY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT Magba-Kamara, Emkay A. B., Deputy Director, 10.12.13. Macarthy, Sonniya R., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

Meteorological Department Kamara, Yusif, Messenger, 1.12.13.

MINISTRY OF WATER RESOURCES

Baion, Millicent R., Confidential Secretary, 1.12.13. Bundu, Chernor A., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13. Conteh, Sorie, Messenger, 1.12.13. Freetown. 9th January, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

## Appointment

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Conteh, Salamatu, Stenographer Grade II, 1.8.13.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Moiwo, Emmanuel H., Nursing Aide, 1.7.??

Ministry of Internal Affairs
Brainard, Juliana V., First Grade Clerk, 1.1.12.

Ministry of Labour Employment and Social Security Mahio, Samuella S., Human Resource Officer, 1.8.13.

Office of the Administrator and Registrar General Kandeh, Susan T., Registration Officer, 1.7.13.

Office of the President Jabbie, Abu Bakarr, Cook, 1.5.13.

Ministry of Water Resources Amara, Augustine S., Water Mapping Assistant, 1.8.13. Conteh, Amara S., Water Mapping Assistant, 1.8.13.

#### Interdiction

JUDICIARY

Sesay, Marnoh Paunga, Deputy Master and Registrar, 7.5.12.

PRISONS DEPARTMENT

Conteh, Alie, 2325 Third Class Prison Officer, 10.4.12.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Maxwell, Sheku Bockarie, Agricultural Instructor Grade I, retired on pension, 17.3.13.

Kamara, Adama F., Assistant Director, retired on pension, 14.2.13.

Mansaray, Francis A., Agricultural Instructor, retired on pension, 11.10.13.

Conteh, Patrick Lamin, Agricultural Technician, retired on pension, 11.10.13.

Bangura, Alimamy, Security Guard, retired on pension, 24.7.13.

Coker, Henrietta, Nursing Assistant, retired on pension, 13.8.13.

Caulker, N. Thomas, Agricultural Instructor, retired on pension, 31.7.13.

CABINET SECRETARIAT

Stafford, Ephraim N., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 18.10.13.

MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Kallon, Sidikie, Cleaner, retired on pension, 15.10.13.

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology Kangbai, Beatrice M., Organizer of Home Economics, retired on pension, 16.7.13.

Mambu, Moijama Miranda, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 26.7.13.

MINISTRY OF YOUTH AND SPORTS Browne, William, Labourer, retired on pension, 28.9.10.

Ministry of Fisheries and Marine Resources Sesay, Magnus, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 30.9.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION

Joseph, Samuel L., Public Health Superintendent, retired on pension, 11.9.12.

Tarawallie, Ibrahim, Senior Security Officer, retired on pension, 19.8.13.

Kanu, Kadie Theresa, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 23.12.13.

Koroma, Samuel, B., Pharmacist, retired on pension, 18.12.13.

MINISTRY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT Koroma, Mohamed, Daily Wage, retired on pension, 29.6.12.

Sankoh, Hassan, Works Service Employee, retired on pension, 29.6.12.

Tarawallie, Yaguba, Messenger, retired on pension, 29.6.12.

Government Printing Department Moore, Fanny, Bookbinding Assistant, retired on pension, 16.10.12.

LAW OFFICERS DEPARTMENT

Garrick, A. N. Leonard, Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 15.10.13.

National Registration Secretariat Ben-Carew, Cornelia V., retired on pension, 26.3.13.

Ministry of Transport and Aviation Gadri, Momoh, Senior Meteorological Attendant, retired on pension, 6.6.13.

Freetown. 2nd January, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

#### Appointment

CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING COLLEGE Foday, Sarah, Assistant Lecturer, 30.9.13. Kanu, Philip J., Senior Lecturer, 30.9.13.

MINISTRY FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Yovuwa, Margaret N., Executive Officer, 2.1.13.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Alren, O. N. Vandy, House Officer, 1.9.13 Kamara, Yossoh S., Porter, 2.4.12.

Ministry of Political and Public Affairs Jigba, Israel B., Acting Permanent Secretary, 11.6.13.

#### Promotion

Human Resource Management Office Amara, Salamatu, Second Grade Clerk, 1.7.10.

Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development Massaquoi, Mustapha, Senior Driver, 1.4.13.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Administrator General's Department Joseph, Gberie J., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 29.11.13.

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food Security Bogba, Augustine P., Assistant Forester, retired on pension, 30.3.13.

Missali, Emmanuel A., Agriculture Inspector Grade II, retired on pension, 4.12.13.

Coker, Henrietta, Nursing Attendant, retired on pension, 13.8.13.

Mohamed, Conteh S., Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 25.10.13.

Saffa, Kallon M., Principal Agricultural Officer, retired on pension, 14.2.13.

Konneh, Cyril, Senior Assistant Conservator of forest, retired on pension, 4.10.13.

#### MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Marah, Hawa E., Nursing Assistant Aide, retired on pension, 15.10.13.

Ministry of Energy and Water Resources Idrissa, Kapu, Foreman, retired on pension, 14.4.10.

MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Rogues, Emile G., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 25.10.13.

Ministry of Fishries and Marine Resources Ngegbo, Michael, Carpenter, retired on pension, 21.6.13. Dougles, Dolice, Work Service Employee, retired on pension, 21.6.13.

#### HIGH COURT

Kargbo, Yeabu Z., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 18.10.13.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Turay, Mabinty, Cook, retired on pension, 4.10.13. Elizabeth, Malue, House Keeper/Caterer, retired on pension, 29.11.13.

Adama, Sesay, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 17.9.13.

Agnes, M. Mammy, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 17.9.13.

Josephine, Simbo N., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 21.8.13.

Kalokoh, Nancy R., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 17.8.13.

Patience, Bowling-Jah A., Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 12.9.13.

Aminata, Kargbo, Midwifery Sister, retired on pension, 4.10.13.

Koroma, Foday M., Medical Entomological Assistant, 27.8.13.

Isata, Mansaray, Nursing Aide, retired on pension, 28.2.11.

Marie, Kanu, Nursing Aide, retired on pension, 12.9.13. Alimamy, Sesay, Porter, retired on pension, 21.10.13. Alimamy, Kargbo, Porter, retired on pension, 17.9.13 Koroma, Alie, Porter, retired on pension, 25.10.13. Festus, Abdulai M., Pharmacy Technician, retired on pension, 14.8.12.

Renner-Lisk, Evelyn, Sewing Maid, retired on pension, 24.10.13.

Samuel, Koroma M., Store Clerk Grade II, retired on pension, 25.10.13.

Momoh, Kamara, Security Guard, retired on pension, 19.7.13.

Beatrice, Koroma, Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 22.11.13.

#### Judiciary

Jongopie, Ambrose, Assistant Registrar Grade II, retired on pension, 3.9.13.

Ministry of Mines and Mineral Resources Morrison, Blalie K., Senior Mines Warden, retired on pension, 26.6.13.

Paterson, J. Musa, Senior Mines Warden, retired on pension, 26.6.13.

National Registration Secretariat
Abdul Karim, Conteh, Supervisor, retired on pension,
22.3.11.

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} Ministry of Transport and Aviation \\ Rubben, Tucker, Meteorological Superintendent, retired \\ on pension, $21.8.12. \end{tabular}$ 

Ministry of Water Resources

Alusine, Kamara K., Pump Attendant, retired on pension, 22.11.13.

Ministry of Works, Housing and Infrastructure Christian, Sannah, Foreman Carpenter, retired on pension, 22.8.13.

Munu, Mohamed A., Inspector of Works, retired on pension, 28.11.13.

## Declaration of Vacant Post

#### Govt. Notice No.

PIN Code 156271

M'bogdah, J. F., Third Class Prison Officer in the Prisons Department, having been absent from duty without leave or reasonable excuse since August, 2010. He is deemed to have vacated his post with effect from that date.

Freetown. 16th January, 2014

#### Govt. Notice No.

## Appointment

MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND SANITATION Kawa, Foday, Porter, 2.4.12.

Ministry of Mines and Miniral Resources Sesay, Sidie M., Senior Assistant Secretary, 11.6.13.

Ministry of Works Housing and Infrastructure Kamara, Ibrahim S., Senior Assistant Secretary, 11.6.13.

## Confirmation of Appointment

Accountant General's Department Bangura, Osman B., Assistant Accountant, 10.4.08.

#### Corrijendum

#### Promotion

Ministry of Local Government and Rural Development Gibril, Sheku A. M., Rural Development Officer, 1.7.11.

GOVERNMENT PRINTING DEPARTMENT
Smart, Sylvester O., Store Clerk Grade I, 1.1.11.

#### Left the Sierra Leone Civil Service

Administrator and Registrar General's Office Sesay, John K., Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 1.5.12.

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FOOD SECURITY Lasayo, Kandeh F., Agricultural Instructor Grade 2, retired on pension, 14.12.12.

Davies, Esther, Temporary Clerical Assistant, retired on pension, 14.8.13.

Conteh, Kapri M., Agricultural Technician, retired on pension, 13.8.13.

Fornah, Daniel S., Senior Agricultural Officer, retired on pension, 25.4.13.

Conteh, Lahai, Fitter, retired on pension, 13.8.13. Vandy, Stephen M., Senior Agricultural Instructor, retired on pension, 16.9.13.

#### MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

Kallah, James S. H., Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 23.7.12.

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology Macfoy, Florence, Organizer Home Economics, retired on pension, 20.8.13.

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology Kangbai, Beatrice M., Organizer of Home Economics, retired on pension, 16.7.13.

Government Printing Department M'bayoh, Hannah, Book Binding Assistant Grade II & III, retired on pension, 30.7.13.

Ministry of Health and Sanitation Fallay, Francis B., Security Guard, retired on pension, 27.9.13.

Davies, Elizabeth I., Staff Midwife, retired on pension, 4.12.13.

Sondai, James L., Pharmacy Technician, retired on pension, 16.4.13.

Fornah, Alex U., State Enrolled Community Health Nurse, retired on pension, 11.10.13.

Kamara, Karim Osman, Dispenser, retired on pension, 27.8.13

Kanu, Assana, Cleaner, retired on pension, 10.10.13.

Wilberforce, Rosaline Joyce, Maternal and Child Health Aide, retired on pension, 27.8.13.

Mansaray, Alpha Barnett, State Enrolled Health Nurse, retired on pension, 27.8.13.

Fallah, Musa, Labourer, retired on pension, 27.8.13. Amara, Paul J. k., Pharmacy Technician, retired on pension, 17.4.13.

Kamara, Umaru A., Pharmacy Technician/Dispenser, retired on pension, 20.12.12.

Ministry of Fisheries and Marine Resources Taylor, Tommy D. K., Principal Fisheries Officer, retired on pension, 27.11.13.

Kanu, Foday, Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 15.7.13.

Koroma, Allieu, Watchman, retired on pension, 12.9.12.

#### MINISTRY OF INTERNAL AFFAIRS

Kamara, Amadu L., Deputy Superintendent, retired on pension, 7.8.12.

Sesay, Victor F., Superintendent of Prison, retired on pension, 10.10.12.

Ministry of Mine and Mineral Resources Dugba, John M., Mines Warden, retired on pension, 3.7.13.

Ministry of Social Welfare, Gender and Children's Affairs Claye, Dorcas, Third Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 22 11 13

MINISTRY OF WORKS, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE Macauley, Margaret, Second Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 30.9.13.

Smart, Saidu, Leading Hand Plumber, retired on pension, 13.8.13.

Mansaray, Gbawuru Mohamed, Executive Engineer, retired on pension, 8.10.13.

## MINISTRY OF YOUTH AND SPORT

Kandeh, Lucy A., First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 24.9.13.

Pokawa, Catherine, First Grade Clerk, retired on pension, 24.9.13.